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Florence County Government 
Procurement Department 

 

 

April 12, 2017 

ADDENDUM NO.2- JOHNSONVILLE BALLFIELD CANTEEN BUILDING (BID NO. 25-16/17) 

We are pleased to present questions and answers from the Pre-bid Meeting on April 4th, 
2017.  A new set of revised drawings is attached with the changes noted below.  The 
Revision is #2 and changes to the drawings are clouded for clarity. 
 
For clarity, questions are in italics and our responses are on bold text.  The sheet number (if 
applicable) is attached.  The following information shall be incorporated and made a part of 
invitation to bid no. 25-16/17 and shall hereby become part of the bid and contract 
documents.  

 
 
1. Sheet A6 (Wall Sections) was missing from the plan set. 

The sheet is attached: 
A6   WALL SECTIONS   AE067_07_A6_ADDENDUM2_041017 

 
There are five different internal wall cross sections on this sheet.  The exterior wall 
only changes at the canopy frontage and is otherwise the same all around.  The wall 
locations are specified on Sheet A1. 
 

2. On some sheets wood studs are called out for the internal walls; metal studs are called out 
on others.  Which is it? 
Either is acceptable, whichever is more cost effective.  Our wall sections are generic 
and show wood studs.  (Sheet A6) 
 
If metal studs are used, and connected directly to the metal building walls, the 
Collateral Load on the metal building walls increases by approximately 1,776 square 
feet of internal walls + 657 square feet of mezzanine space.  Not an exact number, but 
enough for the metal building contractor to estimate the difference in the loads. 

 
3. What type of stone is used on the external walls of the building? 

The 36” of stone along the base of the external walls should be priced & listed as 
ALTERNATE 1.  (Sheet A3) 
 
The type of stone is Brown Stone Veneer with ledge-style faux rocks.  M-Rock 
Appalachian Ledge or Meridian Ledge are good matches.  Veneerstone Stacked Stone 
Winslow is another similar option. 
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The walls are cream, and the roof & trim will be green.  The building was designed to 
look similar to the Johnsonville Fire Station on Possum Fork Road.  It is within sight 
distance of the ball fields. (note on Sheet A3) 
 
The Fire Station is a pre-fabricated building by Butler Manufacturing out of Kansas 
City.  Their southeast region office is located in Laurinburg, NC (910-276-7676, in case 
you want to request a color sample).  In general, a similar green/cream color scheme 
that matches the Fire Station look is acceptable. 
 
The alcove with the restroom doors will have metal panels only, no rock.  (Sheet A3) 

 
4. What is the R-value of the insulation in the walls? 

This is on Sheet A6, with notes on Sheets A2 and A5. 

 The external metal building walls are R-19 Batt insulation behind sheet rock. 

 The inside of the metal roof is R-31 bag-type white vinyl faced insulation 
affixed to the ceiling. 

 The internal walls have R-11 Batt insulation. 

 The inside of the canopy does not require any insulation. 
 

5. Who is responsible for Special inspections?  Page 4 of the Bid states that this is the 
Contractor’s responsibility. 
That was incorrect.  The County will be handling special inspections.  They will also 
take care of the geotechnical bore, which is forthcoming. 

 
6. Sheet P2 shows electrical wall heaters, but they do not appear on the Electrical Plans. 

The electric heaters were removed from the plans.  Ignore the ones on P2.  (Sheet P2) 
 
7. Who provides the appliances in the kitchen? 

The League will be providing the appliances, including the refrigerator and range.  
They are shown for reference, as are the counters.  The sinks in the kitchen will be 
roughed in with basic support.  All other millwork and cabinetry will be handled by 
the League. 

 
8. Sheet A1 shows a wetwall in the kitchen but it does not look like the one in the restrooms. 

The kitchen wall is a regular floor-to ceiling wall.  We removed the wetwall 
designation from Sheet A1.  The plumbing shown on Sheet P2 implies that water to 
the sink, refrigerator and hand sink goes in the walls, but they can be routed beneath 
the slab if it is more cost effective to do so. 

 
9. All doors shall come equipped with standard returns to keep them closed. (Sheet A4) 
 
10. Drawing C1 (Development Plan) was added as Addendum #1.  Please explain the changes. 

Brocks Grading is currently building the ball fields.  As part of the construction, five 

concrete sidewalks will be poured to connect the fields with the parking areas.  They 

are visible on Sheet C1. 

 Three of these sidewalks are 5-foot wide and stop about 100 feet from the 

center of the ball fields.  These serve the future bleachers.  
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 One sidewalk is 5-feet wide and connects to the west parking area. 

 The last sidewalk is 8-feet wide and connects to the east lot. 

 All of the sidewalks are 4” thick with 3000 psi concrete. 

The site contractor was instructed to stop the sidewalks approximately 54 feet from 

the center of the ball fields. 

The building contractor is responsible for tying into the existing sidewalks and 

continuing them to the center.  The building perimeter will be a pentagon of 4” thick 

3000 psi concrete as shown on the plans.  

Note also that the site is currently bare and the building location sits on 

approximately 18” of fill.  There is topsoil in place (they were going to grass it but we 

stopped them) that will have to be removed. 

11. Who does the foundation? 
Wilkes Engineering, LLC was cited on Sheet A1 as the structural engineer.  This was 
a note left over from an earlier design.  Though we encourage you to use Wilkes, you 
may use your usual foundation designer on this project. 
 
At the Pre-Bid Meeting, I mentioned a $1500 budget for foundation plans that would 
be billed to Aligned Engineering.  This is incorrect.  For simplicity, we will back the 
$1500 out of our contract so that you may bill Florence County directly for foundation 
design.  This removes a step from your billing process. 
 
For design purposes, assume a 4” reinforced slab foundation.  The actual thickness 
and dimentions will be determined by the structural engineer based on the geobore 
and the metal building’s dynamics package. 

 
12. Which IBC are we using? 

The 2015 edition.  This was changed on Sheet A1. 
 
13. What is the building’s Risk Category? 

Category II 
 
14. On Sheet M2, can we use an alternative to the 12”x12” diffusers? 

Yes, each system is different, and air handlers tend to produce different flows.  The 
goal for diffuser type B is 250 cfm without being loud.  A 6”x12” G2V Grille is 
acceptable for the ceiling ducts.  By extension, it could also work for the Type A 
diffusers, which only carry 100 cfm.  We removed the size criteria for Types A, B and 
C on Sheet M2. 
 

15. Can we remove the diffusers altogether and have a single outlet? 
No, the League is considering splitting the meeting room into two rooms with a 
temporary wall sometime in the future.  We need to deliver air to both sides of the 
room. 
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16. What about filter locations? 
We consolidated the filters on Sheets M1 and M2.  Instead of separate filters for the 
return and the make-up air, we are showing a single filter per system located at the air 
handler unit.   

 
17. Is there a specification for the exposed ductwork? 

No.  The IMC has minimum standards which we need to adhere to but the ducts can 
be round or rectangular, spiral wound or crimped sheet metal.  They need to be rigid 
ducts, not flex pipe.  24 GA steel or 22 GA aluminum is a good thickness.  Supports 
and bracing must be included in the bid. 

 
18. The revised Drawings are as follows: 

CS  COVER SHEET    AE067_01_CS_ADDENDUM2_041017 

A1 FLOOR PLAN & NOTES  AE067_02_A1_ADDENDUM2_041017 

A2  REFLECTIVE CEILING & ROOF AE067_03_A2_ADDENDUM2_041017 

A3 ELEVATIONS    AE067_04_A3_ADDENDUM2_041017 

A4  DETAILS & SCHEDULES  AE067_05_A4_ADDENDUM2_041017 

A5 SECTIONS    AE067_06_A5_ADDENDUM2_041017 

A6  WALL SECTIONS    AE067_07_A6_ADDENDUM2_041017 

P2 PLUMBING PLANS   AE067_09_P1_ADDENDUM2_041017 

M1  MECHANICAL NOTES & DETAILS AE067_10_M1_ADDENDUM2_041017 

M2 DEVELOPMENT PLAN  AE067_11_M2_ADDENDUM2_041017 

 

PLEASE ACKNOWLEDGE THIS ADDENDUM BY SIGNING BELOW AND SUBMIT IT WITH 

YOUR BID.   

 

I have read and acknowledged pages 1 thru 4 of this addendum for bid no. 25-16/17. 

 

 

_______________________       _______________________          ______________ 

   Authorized Signature                          Printed Name                                Date    

 

 

___________________________________________________________________ 

Company Name 
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